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The City Street Railroad Company Car Barns Complex consists of three brick 
buildings which occupy the southern part of the block bounded by Broad, Third, 
Market, and Second Streets and the northern part of the block bounded by Broad, 
Third, Market, and Fourth Streets in Chattanooga. In recent years the buildings 
have served as bus repair, maintenance, and storage facilities as well as providing 
office space for the Chattanooga Area Regional Transportation Authority, the city's 
mass transit system.

The southernmost building has seen continuous service as a storage and repair 
facility for Chattanooga's public transportation system since it was erected in 1886. 
On June 15, 1886, J.H. Warner, president of the Chattanooga Street Railroad Company, 
announced that the firm had recently purchased the property at Market and Third 
Streets and would be constructing "an appropriate and enlarged stable and car barn" 
to house the additional stock and cars needed for its recently announced twelve mile 
expansion to its present system.

Construction was soon underway on a 110' x 200' structure composed of a large 
open ground floor and a full basement. The ground level was divided lengthwise by 
two rows of steel columns, fabricated from smaller angles and placed on 20' centers, 
creating column bays of 40' x 24', and 40'. Walls were of local red brick with 
poured-in-place concrete for floors and the roof structure, which was essentially 
flat with a slight slope to the north. The major functional features of the 
structure were the large wooden overhead doors whose openings measured 12' wide 
by 16' high occurring on both east and west elevations. The north and south 
elevations were pierced by windows in a regular fashion in line with the interior 
column bays. Each of these windows included cut limestone sills and arched lintels 
composed of rows-of brick. Roof drains disrupt the window alignment of the north 
elevation roughly in line with the interior columns.

The major decorative elements are found on the east and west elevations which 
contain the large car doors and are topped with decorative pediments. Each of these 
elevations is divided by a series of bands or string courses starting'directly above 
the large car doors with a lintel course. Some two feet above this is a corbeled 
course imitative of round-arch lintels surmounted with two additional string courses.

The present appearance of the building has remained essentially unchanged, 
although several window and door openings have been altered, and an interior elevator 
with a roof penthouse (c. 1905) has been added. A 14' x 52' bus wash was built 
in 1955 at the southwest corner of the building.

Those buildings located north of Third Street include the offices facing 
Third Street, a fifteen-track car barn, and a bus fueling and storage facility. The 
offices and car barn were designed by R.H. Hunt, Architects, and construction was 
begun in late 1906. The Hunt firm, one of the finest ever to practice in the city, 
has many fine buildings to its credit including the Hamilton County Courthouse and 
the Carnegie Library, both currently listed on the National Register.

The office building is a one-story brick bearing wall structure with a two 
story central office tower. The facade (south elevation) is composed of alternating 
double and single window openings with cut limestone sills and lintels with keystones. 
The central two-story element contains the major doorway at the ground level. This 
central section is topped by a poured-in-place concrete pediment containing the name 
of the Chattanooga Railways Company and is roofed with tile. Directly adjoining 
the office structure are the five car barn bays with brick bearing walls and elevations 
similar on both the Market Street (east) and the Broad Street (west) sides. These 
elevations contain large openings (once enclosed by large wooden doors now in storage)
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topped by stepped gables concealing corrugated metal deck roofs. Each of these 
gables is pierced by a circular light which is surrounded by a double row of brick 
headers.

The northernmost section of this complex was constructed in 1926. This brick 
building served as a refueling and storage facility. Although architecturally 
undistinguished, the building was designed to create a visual unit with the 
adjacent 1906 portion.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This complex of buildings has served as a focal point in Chattanooga's 
transportation history since the oldest building in the complex was built at 
301 Market Street in 1886. This building and the two others in this complex, 
the 1906 office and five bays at 241 Market and the 1926 garage at 215 Market, 
have played vital roles in three distinct phases of mass transportation history 
in Chattanooga. First as a stable and car barns for horse-drawn street cars, 
then as car barns for electric street cars, and finally as garages for the city's 
bus system, these buildings have been an important factor in Chattanooga's 
transportation development for over ninety years. Vacated in 1978 by the 
Chattanooga Area Regional Transportation Authority, the city f s mass transportation 
system, the buildings at first appeared slated for demolition. Currently, the 
complex has been purchased by a group of developers for redevelopment as a sports 
complex.

Various street car cpmpanies existed in Chattanooga during the late 1800' s. 
The third of these companies to be chartered and the first actual working company 
was the Chattanooga Street Railroad Company. After renting stables at a local 
hotel, this company erected its first building in the early 1800 's... Used as the 
business 's major terminal, it burned in the late 1800' s. In 1886 additional land 
was purchased for, a building for use as stables, car barns ,, ,an4 general office space. 
This 1886 building is currently the oldest remaining building in Chattanooga directly 
dealing with Chattanooga's streetcar history. Three years later this company was 
sold to Chattanooga Electric Street Railroad Company which had introduced in 
that same year electric street cars to Chattanooga. In 1891 this firm was renamed 
the Chattanooga Electric Railway Company.

This early period of streetcar history reflects two significant tendencies. 
First, there were a number of street car lines in operation. These lines were 
highly competitive, often short-lived, and exchanged ownership frequently. Secondly, 
many of the early owners were local leaders who played crucial roles in Chattanooga's 
development in this and other areas such as banking and land development.

Needing additional space, the Chattanooga Electric Railway Company constructed 
another building in 1906. This building was used for their main offices and had a 
five bay-15 track car barn attached. Shortly afterwards, this company went broke.

The next company, the Chattanooga Railway and Light Company existed until 
after World War I when it also failed and then went into receivership. Afterwards 
it became known as the Chattanooga Street Railways Company. This firm merged in 
1922 with a power company to become the Tennessee Electric Power Company (TEPCO) 
which, in 1925, instituted the city's first motor powered bus services. It was 
roughly at this time tha,t ,tjie third building in this complex was constructed to
the north of the 10 structure. After the introduction of these new buses, trolley 
lines began to be slowly eliminated until 1947 when Chattanooga's last electric trolley
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ran. TEPCO was purchased in 1941 by Southern Coach Lines who managed 
Chattanooga's transit operations until the 1970's when the Chattanooga 
Area Regional Transportation Authority (CARTA) was created. This agency 
continued to use the old car barn facilities until 1978 when new terminal 
facilities were constructed.

These three buildings have been in continuous transportation related 
uses since their dates of construction——1886, 1906, and 1926. Individually 
each building represents a significant development in mass transportation 
history in Chattanooga: the 1886 structure is the only building remaining 
in Chattanooga that was constructed for use as a mule/horse stable; the 
1906 structure is one of two buildings remaining in Chattanooga that was 
constructed for use as trolley barns; and the 1928 structure is the oldest 
building in Chattanooga specifically constructed for the then new motor 
powered buses. Collectively, the history of these three buildings span 
the major developments of mass transit in Chattanooga and represent a 
crucial element in Chattanooga's development as a major city.

The property nominated includes the two tracts in the possession of 
the current owners: John Ross Properties and The Sports Barn, Inc. The 
tracts contain a total of approximately 2.25 acres.
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